






CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2025 
 
 
September 8 
Council Meeting 
Monday, September 8, 2025 
6:30 p.m. Work Session – Conference Room 145, 
City Hall 
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
September 9 
Board of Appeals Meeting - CANCELED 
Tuesday, September 9, 2025 
7:30 pm – Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
September 13 
International Taste of Snellville 
Saturday, September 13, 2025 
4:00 pm to 8:00 pm 
Towne Green 
 
September 14 
Broadcast of September 8, 2025 Council Meeting 
Sunday, September 14, 2025 
Watch the broadcast on Comcast Channel 25 at 
6:30 pm 
 
September 17 
Downtown Development Authority Meeting 
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 
4:30 p.m. – 2nd Floor Conference Room 259, City 
Hall 
 
September 18 
Downtown Tunes – Free Concert at the Grove 
Thursday, September 18, 2025 
Free Music by Ignatius Hines 
6:00  pm to 9:00 pm 
The Grove at Towne Center 
 
September 20 
Live on the Lawn Concert 
Saturday, September 20, 2025 
6:00 pm to 9:00 pm 
Towne Green 
 
 

 
 
September 22 
Council Meeting 
Monday, September 22, 2025 
6:30 p.m. Work Session – Conference Room 145, 
City Hall 
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
September 23 
Planning Commission Meeting - CANCELED 
Tuesday, September 23, 2025 
7:00 pm Work Session – Conference Room 145, 
City Hall  
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
September 26 
Splash Bash! Free Movie  at the Grove 
Friday, September 26, 2025 
A Minecraft Movie 
6:00  pm to 10:00 pm 
The Grove at Towne Center 
 
 

https://www.snellville.org/broadcast-of-11320-council-meeting-2020-01-19


















Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO:  The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE:  September 8, 2025 
 
CASE:  #RZ 25‐05 – 108‐Unit Townhome Development at Tree Ln., Snellville 
 
STATUS:  2nd Reading (Public Hearing) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Application by DeThomas Investments, LLC to amend the Official Zoning Map from BG (General 
Business) District  to R‐TH  (Townhouse Residential) District and variances  from  the UDO  for a 
15.01±  acre  site  located  on  Tree  Ln,  behind  12  Stone  Church  for  a  108‐unit  single‐family 
(attached) townhouse development with a gross density of 7.20 units per acre.  
 
Financial Impact:  Site Development Fees; Building permit fees; Real 
  Property Taxes; Stormwater Utility; and 
  Sanitation  Fees 
 
Planning Department Recommendation:  Approval with Conditions 
 
Planning Commission Meeting 
And Recommendation:  July 22, 2025 (Denial) 
 
Mayor and Council Meetings:  August 11, 2025 (1st Reading) 
  August 25, 2025 (Table to Sept 8th Meeting) 
  September 8, 2025 (2nd Reading & Public Hearing) 
 
Action Requested:      Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
Draft Ordinance:      Attached 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

 Letter of Intent (6‐10‐2025) 

 #RZ 25‐05 Rezoning Application (6‐10‐2025) 

 9‐20‐2005 Boundary Survey (6‐10‐2025) 

 Sample Elevations and Floorplan (6‐10‐2025) 

 Sample 6‐Unit Front & Rear Elevation (6‐10‐2025) 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3518 www.snellville.org 

https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/letter-of-intent-with-variances-6-10-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-rezoning-application-6-10-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/boundary-tree-lane-dev.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/pinewood-snellville-townhomes.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/amberwood_oakwood-elevations-six-unit-building.pdf


 
 
Case #RZ 25‐05 – 108‐Unit Townhome Development at Tree Ln., Snellville 
September 8, 2025     
Page… 2 
 
 

 Sample Colored Front Elevation (6‐10‐2025) 

 6‐5‐2025 Colored Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) (6‐10‐2025) 

 3‐25‐2025 Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) (6‐10‐2025) 

 6‐17‐2025 Boundary Survey (6‐18‐2025) 

 Jul 22 2025 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (7‐16‐2025) 

 Unofficial July 22 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes (7‐24‐2025) 

 Jul 22 2025 Planning Commission Case Report (7‐23‐2025) 

 Jul 23 2025 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis with Planning 
Commission Report (7‐24‐2025) 

 8‐20‐2025 Trip Assessment Memorandum (8‐22‐2025) 

 8‐19‐2025 REVISED Colored Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) 8‐22‐2025 

 8‐26‐2025 REVISED Colored Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) 8‐27‐2025 
 

https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/sample-colored-front-elevations.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/32658.0000-concept-a-6.5.2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/32658.0000-site-layout-a-060525.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/survey-2623.93sv_20250617.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-staff-report-7-16-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/pc-case-report-rz-25-05-7-23-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-staff-report-7-23-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/tree-lane-townhomes-trip-assessment-memo-2025.08.20.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/1719-scenic-rth-rev-8-19-25.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/32658.0000-concept-a-reduced-file-size.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/agendas-minutes?field_council_committee_target_id=12&field_meeting_date_value-date_year_range=2025


AUG 25TH CONDITIONS FROM DRAFT ORDINANCE 2025-17 SEP 8th RECOMMENDED REVISED DRAFT CONDITIONS 
1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan entitled 

“Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3‐25-2025 (stamped 
received JUN 10 2025), with modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning or 
State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, 
as determined by the Director of Planning and Development will require Mayor and 
Council approval. 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the colored rezoning site plan 
entitled “Layout A Conceptual Site Plan  1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 
AUGUST 26, 2025  (stamped received AUG 27 2025) , with modifications permitted to 
meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation 
from the rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and 
Development will require Mayor and Council approval. 

2. A mandatory Homeowner’s Association shall be formed and incorporated within the 
State of Georgia for all single family (detached) and (attached) lots in the 
development and common areas. A rental cap of ten-percent (10%) of the total 
number of lots at any given time for rentals greater than thirty (30) consecutive days 
shall be placed on the development with such language being included in the 
Homeowner’s Association Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. 

2. A mandatory Homeowner’s Association shall be formed and incorporated within the 
State of Georgia for all single family (detached) and (attached) lots in the 
Development and common areas. A rental cap of ten-percent (10%) of the total 
number of lots at any given time for rentals greater than thirty (30) consecutive days 
shall be placed on the development with such language being included in the 
Homeowner’s Association Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. 

3. There shall be a 25-foot undisturbed buffer adjacent to Parcels 5056 070; 5041 055; 
5041 054; 5041 053; 5041 105; and portion of 5056 002 as shown on the site plan 
entitled “Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3‐25‐2025 
(stamped received JUN 10 2025). A Landscaping Plan shall be provided for areas 
within the 25-foot undisturbed buffer that are sparsely vegetated and/or disturbed, 
to be approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 

3. There shall be a 25-foot undisturbed buffer adjacent to Parcels 5056 070; 5041 055; 
5041 054; 5041 053; 5041 105; and portion of 5056 002 as shown on the site plan 
entitled “Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3‐25‐2025 
(stamped received JUN 10 2025). A Landscaping Plan shall be provided for areas 
within the 25-foot undisturbed buffer that are sparsely vegetated and/or disturbed, 
to be approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 

4. In lieu of sidewalks required by the code on both sides of Street “A” and Street “B”, a 
minimum 4‐feet wide sidewalk with minimum 5‐feet wide planter strip shall be 
installed as shown on the site plan for Street “B”, with continuation of sidewalk and 
planter strip along Street “B” between Unit 72 and Unit 108, with sidewalk 
connection to the existing sidewalk at Tree Ln, with continuation of the Tree Ln 
sidewalk 150± feet to the west. To allow for the 22‐feet minimum driveway length 
measured from garage door to Street “B” back‐of‐curb for front‐entry Units 73‐92, no 
sidewalk is required. 

4.  In lieu of sidewalks required by the code on both sides of Street “A” and Street “B”, a 
minimum 4‐feet wide sidewalk with minimum 5‐feet wide planter strip shall be 
installed as shown on the site plan for Street “B”, with continuation of sidewalk and 
planter strip along Street “B” between Unit 72 and Unit 108, with sidewalk 
connection to the existing sidewalk at Tree Ln, with continuation of the Tree Ln 
sidewalk 150± feet to the west. To allow for the 22‐feet minimum driveway length 
measured from garage door to Street “B” back‐of‐curb for front‐entry Units 73‐92, no 
sidewalk is required. 

5. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with the Georgia Blasting Standards Act, 
including pre‐blast and post blast surveys for any structure within 750 feet of the 
blast site or directly adjacent to subject property with advanced notice to any 
affected property owner. The applicant will provide advanced notice of any blasting 
to the following H.O.A. #RZ 25‐05 – DeThomas Investments, LLC 15.01± Acres at Tree 
Ln (Behind 12 Stone Church) 1719 Scenic Highway, Snellville, Georgia Page 12 of 12 
Boards: Waterford Township and Shadowbrook Crossing. Before blasting work begins, 

5. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with the Georgia Blasting Standards Act, 
including pre‐blast and post blast surveys for any structure within 750 feet of the 
blast site or directly adjacent to subject property with advanced notice to any 
affected property owner. The applicant will provide advanced notice of any blasting 
to the following H.O.A. #RZ 25‐05 – DeThomas Investments, LLC 15.01± Acres at Tree 
Ln (Behind 12 Stone Church) 1719 Scenic Highway, Snellville, Georgia Page 12 of 12 
Boards: Waterford Township and Shadowbrook Crossing. Before blasting work begins, 



a blasting notification plan must be reviewed and approved by the Planning and 
Development Department. Said plan shall include signage, email notification, and any 
other notification deemed necessary. 

a blasting notification plan must be reviewed and approved by the Planning and 
Development Department. Said plan shall include signage, email notification, and any 
other notification deemed necessary. 

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult magazines, 
books, videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment Ordinance in effect 
on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited. 

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult magazines, 
books, videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment Ordinance in effect 
on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited. 

7. Signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 7.   Signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 
 8.    Units 1-12, 61-72, and 101-108 as shown on the conceptual site plan dated August 26, 

2025 shall provide architectural treatments on the road facing side of each unit to 
provide variation in elevations and avoid monotony.  

 9.    The Applicant/Developer shall provide a minimum of four different front doors 
throughout the project, alternating and four different elevations and finishes for 
garage doors, alternating. 

 10. Any garage shall not be converted to any other use such as an additional living room 
or bedroom. 

 11. No townhome shall be altered after construction as to add any bedroom or bathroom 
without getting proper permitting and approval from the City of Snellville. 

 12. All internal streets, alleys and stormwater management facilities shall be privately 
owned and maintained by the Property Owner’s Association. 

 



ORD 2025-17  Page 1 of 5 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2025-17 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE APPLICATION AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP FROM BG (GENERAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT TO R-TH (TOWNHOUSE 
RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT FOR A 108‐UNIT SINGLE‐FAMILY (ATTACHED) 
TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT WITH A GROSS DENSITY OF 7.20 UNITS PER 
ACRE ON 15.01± ACRES SITUATED ALONG TREE LANE AND ADDITIONAL 
RELATED VARIANCES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 25-05 
 
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER: DeThomas Investments, LLC (Applicant) 
 
 Tree Lane Development, LLC (Owner) 
 
LOCATION: Tree Lane behind 12 Stone Church  
 
TAX PARCEL: R5056 003 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: 1.Variance from Sec. 401 

3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the  
 vehicular access requirement to the  
 undeveloped 15± acre adjoining parcel to  
 the north (Parcel 5056 004).   
 
 2.Variance from Sec. 401‐

5.3.C. (Local Streets and Minor Arterials or 
Collectors): to allow a hammerhead street  

 termination in lieu of a cul‐de-sac  
 turnaround for “deadend” Street “B”.  
 
 3.Variance from Sec. 202 6.6. (Dimensional  
 Standards – Site Setback): to waive the mini

mum 50-feet site setback (along  
 streets) and waive the minimum 40‐

feet site setback (not along streets).  
 
 4.Variance from Sec. 201‐2.6. (Townhome  
 Building Type): to allow front‐entry  
 townhomes for units 73‐92.  



ORD 2025-17  Page 2 of 5 

 5.Variance from Sec. 202‐6.9.F. (R‐
TH Design Standards): to allow  

 front‐entry townhomes for units 73‐92.  
 
 6.Variance from Sec. 201‐1.6.D.1.  
 (Driveways): to increase the 35% maximum 

front yard area for driveways or authorized  
 onsite parking to 67%.  
 
 7.Variance from Sec. 401‐5.11.C.  
 (Horizontal Street Alignment): to reduce the 

minimum horizontal street curve radius for a
 local street from 81‐feet to 50‐feet.  

 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Tree Lane Townhomes 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Mayor and Council on August 

25, 2025. 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing, the council has made the 

following decision to deny the zoning amendment and the accompanying variances 

requested stated herein. 

Section 2.  The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification is to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 



ORD 2025-17  Page 3 of 5 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance. The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 



ORD 2025-17  Page 4 of 5 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2025.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 

 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2025-17  Page 5 of 5 

ORDAINED this ______ day of ______________, 2025. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Tod Warner, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
 
 
             
John J. Crowley, City Attorney   Kerry Hetherington, Council Member 
Powell & Crowley, LLP 
 
       ______________________________ 

Norman Carter, Council Member 
 



ORD 2025-17  Page 1 of 7 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2025-17 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO GRANT THE APPLICATION AMEND THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP FROM BG (GENERAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT TO R-TH 
(TOWNHOUSE RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT FOR A 108‐UNIT SINGLE‐FAMILY 
(ATTACHED) TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT WITH A GROSS DENSITY OF 7.20 
UNITS PER ACRE ON 15.01± ACRES SITUATED ALONG TREE LANE AND 
ADDITIONAL RELATED VARIANCES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 25-05 
 
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER: DeThomas Investments, LLC (Applicant) 
 
 Tree Lane Development, LLC (Owner) 
 
LOCATION: Tree Lane behind 12 Stone Church  
 
TAX PARCEL: R5056 003 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: 1.Variance from Sec. 401 

3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the  
 vehicular access requirement to the  
 undeveloped 15± acre adjoining parcel to  
 the north (Parcel 5056 004).   
 
 2.Variance from Sec. 401‐

5.3.C. (Local Streets and Minor Arterials or 
Collectors): to allow a hammerhead street  

 termination in lieu of a cul‐de-sac  
 turnaround for “deadend” Street “B”.  
 
 3.Variance from Sec. 202 6.6. (Dimensional  
 Standards – Site Setback): to waive the mini

mum 50-feet site setback (along  
 streets) and waive the minimum 40‐

feet site setback (not along streets).  
 
 4.Variance from Sec. 201‐2.6. (Townhome  
 Building Type): to allow front‐entry  
 townhomes for units 73‐92.  



ORD 2025-17  Page 2 of 7 

 5.Variance from Sec. 202‐6.9.F. (R‐
TH Design Standards): to allow  

 front‐entry townhomes for units 73‐92.  
 
 6.Variance from Sec. 201‐1.6.D.1.  
 (Driveways): to increase the 35% maximum 

front yard area for driveways or authorized  
 onsite parking to 67%.  
 
 7.Variance from Sec. 401‐5.11.C.  
 (Horizontal Street Alignment): to reduce the 

minimum horizontal street curve radius for a
 local street from 81‐feet to 50‐feet.  

 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Tree Lane Townhomes 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Mayor and Council on August 

25, 2025. 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing, the council hereby grants 

the application to amend the Official Zoning Map for Tax Parcel 5056 003 from BG to R-

TH with the following conditions: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the colored rezoning site plan 
entitled “Layout A Conceptual Site Plan  1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 
AUGUST 26, 2025  (stamped received AUG 27 2025) , with modifications 
permitted to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. 
Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of 
Planning and Development will require Mayor and Council approval. 



ORD 2025-17  Page 3 of 7 

2. A mandatory Homeowner’s Association shall be formed and incorporated within 
the State of Georgia for all single family (detached) and (attached) lots in the 
Development and common areas. A rental cap of ten-percent (10%) of the total 
number of lots at any given time for rentals greater than thirty (30) consecutive days 
shall be placed on the development with such language being included in the 
Homeowner’s Association Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. 
 

3. There shall be a 25-foot undisturbed buffer adjacent to Parcels 5056 070; 5041 055; 
5041 054; 5041 053; 5041 105; and portion of 5056 002 as shown on the site plan 
entitled “Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3‐25‐
2025 (stamped received JUN 10 2025). A Landscaping Plan shall be provided for 
areas within the 25-foot undisturbed buffer that are sparsely vegetated and/or 
disturbed, to be approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 
 

4. In lieu of sidewalks required by the code on both sides of Street “A” and Street “B”, 
a minimum 4‐feet wide sidewalk with minimum 5‐feet wide planter strip shall be 
installed as shown on the site plan for Street “B”, with continuation of sidewalk and 
planter strip along Street “B” between Unit 72 and Unit 108, with sidewalk 
connection to the existing sidewalk at Tree Ln, with continuation of the Tree Ln 
sidewalk 150± feet to the west. To allow for the 22‐feet minimum driveway length 
measured from garage door to Street “B” back‐of‐curb for front‐entry Units 73‐92, 
no sidewalk is required. 
 

5. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with the Georgia Blasting Standards Act, 
including pre‐blast and post blast surveys for any structure within 750 feet of the 
blast site or directly adjacent to subject property with advanced notice to any 
affected property owner. The applicant will provide advanced notice of any blasting 
to the following H.O.A. #RZ 25‐05 – DeThomas Investments, LLC 15.01± Acres 
at Tree Ln (Behind 12 Stone Church) 1719 Scenic Highway, Snellville, Georgia 
Page 12 of 12 Boards: Waterford Township and Shadowbrook Crossing. Before 
blasting work begins, a blasting notification plan must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning and Development Department. Said plan shall include signage, 
email notification, and any other notification deemed necessary. 
 

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult 
magazines, books, videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment 
Ordinance in effect on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited. 
 

7. Signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 
 

8. Units 1-12, 61-72, and 101-108 as shown on the conceptual site plan dated August 
26, 2025 shall provide architectural treatments on the road facing side of each unit 
to provide variation in elevations and avoid monotony.  



ORD 2025-17  Page 4 of 7 

9. The Applicant/Developer shall provide a minimum of four different front doors 
throughout the project, alternating and four different elevations and finishes for 
garage doors, alternating. 
 

10. Any garage shall not be converted to any other use such as an additional living 
room or bedroom. 
 

11. No townhome shall be altered after construction as to add any bedroom or bathroom 
without getting proper permitting and approval from the City of Snellville. 
 

12. All internal streets, alleys and stormwater management facilities shall be privately 
owned and maintained by the Property Owner’s Association. 

 
Section 2. In addition, the following variances are hereby approved or denied as 

follows: 

1. Approval of variance from Sec. 401‐3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the 
inter‐parcel access requirement to the undeveloped 15± acre adjoining parcel to the 
north (Parcel 5056 004).    
 

2. Denial of variance from Sec. 401‐5.3.C. (Local Streets and Arterials or Collectors): 
to allow a hammerhead street termination in lieu of a cul‐de‐sac turnaround for 
“deadend” Street “B”.   
 

3. Approval of variance from Sec. 202‐6.6. (Dimensional Standards – Site Setback): 
to waive the minimum 50‐feet site setback (along streets) and waive the minimum 
40-feet site setback (not along streets).   
 

4.  Approval of variance from Sec. 202‐6.9.F. (R‐TH Design Standards): to allow 
front‐entry townhomes for units 73‐92.  Applicant requested a similar variance per 
Sec. 202‐6.3. (Building Types), no building type requirements apply in the R-TH 
District. Therefore, the requested variance under Sec.  202-6.3is not applicable to 
the requested zoning. 
 

5. Approval of variance from Sec. 201‐1.6.D.1. (Driveways): to increase the 35% 
maximum front yard area for driveways or authorized onsite parking to 67%.  
 

6. Approval of variance from Sec. 401‐5.11.C. (Horizontal Street Alignment): to 
reduce the minimum horizontal street curve radius for a local street from 81‐feet to 
50‐feet. 

 



ORD 2025-17  Page 5 of 7 

Section 3.  The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 4.  The changes in zoning classification is to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance. The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 



ORD 2025-17  Page 6 of 7 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2025.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 

 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2025-17  Page 7 of 7 

ORDAINED this ______ day of ______________, 2025. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Tod Warner, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
 
 
             
John J. Crowley, City Attorney   Kerry Hetherington, Council Member 
Powell & Crowley, LLP 
 
       ______________________________ 

Norman Carter, Council Member 
 


	Work Session Agenda
	Public Hearing & Regular Business Agenda
	Announcements
	Minutes for Approval
	2nd Reading - RZ 25-05 - Tree Lane Townhomes



